


The Company…

Bemis is a leading manufacturer of flexible packaging and pressure

sensitive materials. More than 75 percent of the Company’s sales

are packaging related.

The primary market for the Company’s products is the food industry,

which accounts for over sixty-five percent of sales. Other markets include

medical, pharmaceutical, chemical, agribusiness, printing and graphic arts,

and a variety of other industrial end uses. Bemis holds a strong position in

many of its markets and actively seeks new market segments where its

technical skill and other capabilities provide a competitive advantage.

The Company has a strong technical base in polymer chemistry, film

extrusion, coating and laminating, printing and converting, and pressure

sensitive adhesive technologies. These capabilities are being integrated

to provide greater innovation and accelerated growth in the Company’s

core businesses.

Bemis’ management philosophy is to emphasize long-term development

and profitability and to position the Company in product and market

segments where above average revenue growth and profit potential can

be realized. Emphasis is placed on market selection, product innovation,

and continued efficient and environmentally sound manufacturing

processes. The Company’s more technically oriented, higher margin,

flexible packaging and pressure sensitive materials businesses are being

actively expanded through a strong capital investment program and

selected strategic acquisitions.
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts 2000 1999 % Change

Sales and Earnings:

Net sales $2,164,583 $1,962,628 10%

Income before income taxes 211,502 185,875 14

Provision for income taxes 80,900 71,100 14

Net income 130,602 114,775 14

Per Share:

Basic earnings per share $ 2.46 $ 2.19 12%

Diluted earnings per share 2.44 2.18 12

Dividends paid .96 .92 4

Book value 15.18 13.91 9

Ratios:

Net income to net sales 6.0% 5.8%

Return on average stockholders’ equity 17.1% 16.2%

Return on average total capital 10.8% 10.9%

Total debt to total capital 42.7% 31.7%

Additional Information:

Capital expenditures $ 100,420 $ 137,382 (27)%

EBITDA* $ 351,241 $ 304,810 15

Stock price/earnings ratio range 10 -16x 14-18x

Weighted-average common shares outstanding

for computation of diluted earnings per share 53,552,703 52,657,068 2 

Common shares outstanding at year-end 52,602,414 52,188,715 1 

Number of employees 10,969 9,534 15 

*EBITDA is defined as earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation, and amortization. It is not a measure of operating results, nor is it presented in our
consolidated financial statements. EBITDA is not considered a qualified financial measurement under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Financial Highlights
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To our Shareholders…

A
t Bemis, to innovate means to improve upon the

status quo with leading edge technology and

ingenuity. But a successful innovator must also

accurately anticipate the needs of the market and be

versatile enough to deliver its product to customers in a timely

and cost-efficient manner.  Bemis Company has been

successfully doing just that since 1858. And now as we

enter 2001, opportunities to innovate continue to abound.

In the year 2000, we recorded our first year of sales above

the $2 billion mark.  We achieved this with the help of

some highly successful operations in the face of formidable

market challenges.

Highlights of the past year include:

• Record sales of $2.2 billion dollars, a 10% increase 

over 1999;

• 12% earnings growth to $2.44 per share;

• 15% increase in earnings before interest, income

taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) to

$351 million;

• Successful integration of three strategic acquisitions

totaling $250 million in incremental annual sales;

• Strong 13% sales growth and 18% operating profit

growth in our largest business segment, Flexible

Packaging, representing 77% of company sales, and;

• Repurchase of 1,460,900 shares of company stock for

$43 million.

Flexible Packaging

Our Flexible Packaging business segment continues to 

be highly successful.  This year we devoted substantial

resources to our high barrier products, installing state-of-the-

art equipment in our multi-layer coextruded film production

lines.  This added capacity improves our ability to meet

increasing customer demand for innovative new packaging

designs.  Our polyethylene products also performed well

last year. Operating margins continue to be very strong, as

our focused factories maximize manufacturing efficiencies and

product quality. Some variability in order volume within

paper products last year created efficiency challenges, but

much of that had normalized by year-end. We now look

forward to opportunities to grow sales and profit in paper

products with the recent introduction of several paper

packaging design innovations.

Acquisitions also contributed positively to the results of the

year. With over $150 million in annual sales, our new high

barrier shrink film product line is the largest single acquisition

the company has ever made.  Since the close of the



3

transaction in August, shrink film sales have been strong,

integration efforts are progressing well and operational

synergies are quickly being realized.  In addition to focused

shrink film factories and strong customer relationships that

complement our existing customer portfolio, this acquisition

has expanded our core competencies.  Patented shrink film

technology offers exciting new product opportunities in our

existing high barrier film business.  At the same time, our

material science expertise complements the shrink film

business with multi-layer technology that increases barrier

capabilities.  Capital expansion in these factories will

provide great opportunities for us to increase our position in

these key markets for both food and industrial products.

Our international capabilities have also expanded with the

purchase of the shrink film business that included factories in

Brazil and the United Kingdom.  This is a substantial sales

volume increase for us in both countries, and permits us to

offer greater resources to meet our customers growing

international needs. 

In July, we acquired a polyethylene packaging business which

added $20 to $25 million of sales annually and increased our

market leading positions in the packaging of bread, ice, and

produce.  The business was transferred to our existing

facilities, and the manufacturing equipment is being

strategically deployed into business units that need the

additional capacity.

Overall, with capacity expansion, new product innovation

and strategic acquisitions, our Flexible Packaging business

segment delivered strong results of 13% sales growth and

18% operating profit growth for the year 2000 and is 

well positioned to continue to deliver solid performance 

in the future.

Pressure Sensitive Materials

Sales growth in 2000 for the Pressure Sensitive Materials

business segment was 3% while operating profit decreased by

9% from 1999 levels.  The first half of last year was very

promising as growing demand improved facility utilization

and operating margins reached target double-digit levels.  

In the second half of the year, increasing raw materials prices

created a sizable hurdle in a very competitive pricing

environment.  As the economy began to lose steam in the

latter half of the year, demand in industrial markets

weakened, resulting in lower profit margins and slower sales.

We have opportunities to improve results in 2001.  The

pricing environment has eased in certain areas, allowing

better recovery of increasing freight and raw materials costs.

Our newly implemented Six Sigma program is now keenly

focused on manufacturing and overhead efficiencies and

general cost containment throughout the business.  The

new facility in Columbus, Indiana is progressing well now

that it has installed all necessary production equipment, and

we are optimistic that its performance will significantly

improve in the coming year.

On the cover: A sophisticated, multi-layer extrusion lamination
manufacturing line in our flexible packaging business.
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Opportunities have also emerged in the form of new

acquisitions.  In September we acquired the pressure

sensitive product line of Kanzaki Specialty Films, representing

approximately $75 million in annual sales. This new

product line broadens our product offerings in a high growth

niche market and adds new customers to our existing customer

base. We purchased no equipment or facilities with this

product line, but will purchase Kanzaki's high quality face

paper under a long-term supply agreement and perform the

required adhesive lamination using our own state-of-the-art

equipment. Since this process will not be completely

implemented until late in the second quarter of 2001, it should

lead to improved operating efficiencies later in the year.

Our European pressure sensitive materials operations enjoyed

record sales and profit growth last year, excluding the

dampening effect of currency exposure.  Demand in the

European industrial markets was healthy in the year 2000 and

we continue to have strong positions in niche markets. 

A Formula for Business Excellence

The accomplishments of the past year are evidence of the

success of our persistent adherence to a long-term strategy that

delivers results.  In this year of leadership transition, we

emphasize that our long-term strategy remains clear and

compelling. As illustrated above, our strategic commitment

is centered on a formula that combines three distinct

disciplines to create value.  

First, we are dedicated to promoting technology and innovation

throughout the organization. Our talented and experienced

workforce uses material science to develop new blends of raw

materials and deliver solutions to our customers' needs. This

innovation drives our growth and secures our position as a

leading manufacturer of flexible packaging and pressure

sensitive materials.  

We have structured our production facilities as focused

factories, dedicating equipment to a particular product to

achieve manufacturing excellence. This approach improves

production and scheduling efficiencies, and fosters technical

and operating excellence in our operations. Our level of

investment in world-class production equipment and

development of proprietary manufacturing processes have

positioned Bemis as a premier supplier of innovative products

to many markets.

At Bemis, we have a strong commitment to customer focus that

extends beyond providing quality products at reasonable

prices. We interface directly with our customers in various

Technology & Innovation

Customer
Focus

ValueValue
Manufacturing
Excellence

A Formula for
            Business Excellence

Strategic Commitment
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aspects of their business: in their manufacturing process to test

products and improve efficiency, in providing graphics

services, logistics, electronic data interchange, and in technical

support for new product development. Our goal is to meet

or exceed our customers' objectives, expectations and

scheduling requirements.

We believe that continued emphasis on these three elements in

our operating model provides unique benefits to our customers

which, in turn, enables Bemis to deliver financial results that

create substantial shareholder value.

Outlook

Overall, the Company has performed very well in the last two

years and our prospects for the future are bright. We

continue to dedicate ourselves to being the premier flexible

packaging company in the world, and to strengthen our

number two position in the pressure sensitive materials

business. Specifically, our long-term financial goals are to

achieve consistent, double digit growth in earnings per share

and cash flow, improve our return on capital, and maintain a

capital structure that gives us the financial flexibility to take

advantage of strategic acquisitions. 

During 2000, we acquired three businesses in one quarter, an

aggressive undertaking by most standards.  The success of

their integration is a credit to the transition teams who 

worked diligently throughout the process to ensure a smooth

transfer.  Going forward, our acquisition strategy remains 

the same.  We continue to look for opportunities to add

value with businesses that use similar technologies and to

participate in global industry consolidation. 

We are grateful for the hard work and dedication of nearly

11,000 employees and welcome those who have recently

joined the Bemis team. Their devotion to innovation and

operating excellence makes Bemis a world-class organization.

We thank all of them for their efforts as well as our

customers, suppliers, and shareholders for their continued

support and confidence. 

John H. Roe Jeffrey H. Curler
Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
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Flexible Packaging
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Results from Operations Net Sales
Operating Profit Percent of Net Sales
Operating Profit Percent of Average Investment

Business SegmentsBusiness Segments

High barrier products include
controlled and modified
atmosphere packaging for
food, medical, personal care
and non-food applications
consisting of complex barrier,
multi-layer polymer film
structures and laminates. Value
is added through flexographic
and rotogravure printing as
well as pouch making.

Primary markets are processed
and fresh meat, liquids, snacks,
cheese, coffee, condiments,
candy, pet food, personal care
and medical packaging.

Polyethylene products include
monolayer and coextruded
polymer films that have been
converted to bags, roll stock 
or shrink overwrap. Value is
added through flexographic
printing. 

Primary markets are bakery
products, seed, retail, lawn and
garden, ice, fresh produce,
frozen vegetables, shrink wrap,
tissue and sanitary products.

Paper products include multi-
wall and single ply paper bags,
balers, printed paper roll stock,
and bag closing materials.

Primary markets are pet
products, seed, chemicals,
dairy products, fertilizers, feed,
minerals, flour, rice and sugar.

Products Comprising Flexible Packaging 

42%42%
of sales

High Barrier Products

in 2000

26%26%
of sales
in 2000

9%9%
of sales
in 2000

Polyethylene Products

Paper Products

77%
Flexible Packaging
Bemis is the leading manufacturer of flexible packaging in North America. We provide

multinational and North American food and consumer products companies with

packaging solutions that protect contents during shipment, extend shelf life, and offer

attractive, consumer friendly designs. Over 60% of Flexible Packaging sales are printed

film materials. The balance are sold as plain film for retail and institutional food as well

as a variety of other markets. 
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Roll label products include
unprinted rolls of pressure 
sensitive adhesive coated
papers and film. Our products
are sold to converters 
who print labels for bar
coding, product decoration,
identification, safety marking
and product instructions.

Primary markets are food
packaging, personal care
product packaging, inventory
control labeling and laser/ink
jet printed labels.

Graphics & Distribution
products include unprinted
rolls or sheets of pressure
sensitive adhesive coated
papers and films. Offset
printers, sign makers and photo
labs use our products on short-
run and/or digital printing
technology to create labels,
signs, or vehicle graphics.

Primary markets are sheet
printers, shipping labels,
indoor and outdoor signage,
photograph and digital print
overlaminates and vehicle
graphics. 

Technical & Industrial products
include pressure sensitive
adhesive coated tapes used 
for mounting, bonding and 
fastening. Tapes sold to medical
markets feature medical-grade
adhesives suitable for direct
skin contact.

Primary markets are batteries,
electronics, automotive, construc-
tion, medical and pharmaceuticals.

Products Comprising Pressure Sensitive Materials

11%11%
of sales

Roll Label Products

in 2000

8%8%
of sales
in 2000

4%4%
of sales
in 2000

Graphics & Distribution
Products

Technical & Industrial
Products

23%
Pressure Sensitive Materials
Bemis is a major worldwide manufacturer of pressure sensitive adhesive coated materials

for a variety of markets. Under the brand name MACtac, Bemis delivers advanced 

product performance to the pressure sensitive industry. Examples include labeling for cold

temperature food packaging, harsh environmental conditions, wet manufacturing processes,

miniature electronic components, tamper evident packaging and technologically advanced

fastener applications.

Pressure Sensitive Materials
Results from Operations

'96

Net Sales
Operating Profit Percent of Net Sales
Operating Profit Percent of Average Investment
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T
he key to market leadership is cutting edge technology and

innovation, based primarily upon material science.  At Bemis’

Flexible Packaging operations, differing grades of polymers,

such as polyethylene, polystyrene, polypropylene, nylon,

EVOH and polyester, are combined in a variety of ways to create films

that are stronger, shinier, clearer, abuse resistant, peelable, easier to print,

sterilizable and easier to process on machinery.  And the list goes on!

Our recent acquisition of the shrink packaging business introduces 

a patented technology that was not previously available to us.  The

combination of this shrink film technology and our material science

Innovation through… 

These ceramic bone screws, used in delicate facial
reconstructive surgery, are packaged in a Bemis
thermoformed tray that is also designed to function
as a convenient dispensing device during surgery.

Recently acquired shrink film technology brings with it an
array of patented technologies that are being incorporated
into other products at Bemis. These processed meat products
have been shrink-wrapped to provide an oxygen and
moisture barrier, extending shelf life. This technology is also
applied to fresh meat and cheese markets.

As ethylene oxide sterilization procedures for medical equipment 
packaging become more rigorous and cycle times are shortened,
Bemis proprietary coating on DuPont’s Tyvek® lid stock improves
the porosity and resilience of the package. Clean peel transfer
films offer visible seal verification and easy open features.

Bemis develops a variety of films for bags, roll stock and trays
by custom blending polymer resins selected for optimum
product protection, printability and machinability on customer
packaging lines.

Shaped, Stand Up Pouches are a dynamic new packaging strategy
that can incorporate a variety of convenience features including
reclosable zippers and self-venting microwaveable structures.
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expertise creates sizable opportunities for a variety of new innovations

for our Flexible Packaging operations.

Our research and development efforts go beyond the laboratory to

the manufacturing floor, designing films that work better on even the

newest high-speed machinery.  We go into customer plants to

design innovative solutions for their packaging and marketing needs.

Bemis consistently devotes significant effort to the development 

of new products and processes that will keep us at the forefront of the

industry and keep our customers anticipating the next generation of

packaging innovation.  

Our films with custom blended anti-fog sealants deliver brilliant
clarity, excellent printability, a wide sealing window, and long
lasting fog free appearance throughout a product's shelf life.

As a leading supplier of packaging to the processed meat industry, Bemis provides oxygen, moisture and aroma
barrier films to extend product shelf life. Multi-layer films from our proprietary ICE® film process, initially developed
to provide superior puncture resistance for meat packaging, have become very successful in other markets that require
superior package strength including pet treats, pizza, and liquid packaging.

Metalized coffee packages minimize static build up in ground coffee
packaging operations. A one-way air valve releases gases emitted by whole
bean coffee while retaining the integrity of the oxygen barrier.

Bemis multi-layer family of films is
used in chunk and shredded
natural cheese markets as well as
the processed cheese markets.
Cheddar cheese packaging films
provide oxygen and moisture
barriers and strong seals to extend
product shelf life. Specialty cheeses,
such as swiss, require custom film
materials that allow gases emitted
by the cheese to escape while
minimizing oxygen inflow.

The Fancy Cut Tear Initiation System feature creates an easy to open
package without the serrated or notched edge. This proprietary
feature makes the package smoother, sleeker, and more attractive
both before and after opening.
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Our shrink multi-pak film is strong enough to hold products together through the distribution system but
doesn’t distort the clear, high gloss brand labeling.

Bemis’ patented O-P-C™ design is a unique,
multilayer label construction combining a
customized film lamination and proprietary
adhesives. This system allows the label to be
peeled away to break the seal and leaves 
the adhesive on the bag to prevent label
contamination when product is poured out and
provide for dependable reclosure.

This unique package changed the way flour has been packaged for
over 80 years. Its wide opening allows for use of measuring utensils
and the reclosable zipper top keeps flour neatly inside.

With our focus on the development of proprietary films and consumer

convenience features, we continue to drive innovation into the flexible

packaging markets and set the standard for customer satisfaction.  

Consumers demand increasing levels of freshness and convenience

from our customers, and we are responding with revolutionary 

solutions that are appealing to consumers and cost effective to 

our customers.

In our Pressure Sensitive Materials operations, the focus of material

science is on adhesive quality and the growing use of adhesive film

in place of paper labels and wet glue.  Under the brand name of

MACtac, we offer a wide variety of high quality, pressure sensitive

Clear, vinyl labels provided by MACtac are printed and heated to
shrink to the shape of the bottle, leaving a clear, “no label”
appearance.

…Material Science

Bemis converting know-how, coupled with a
unique film component, delivers a package
that meets the shelf life requirements for
these very oxygen sensitive ingredients. The
liquid packet is sealed in a pour spout design
that neatly dispenses sauce when opened.
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As the technology leader of removable
adhesives, MACtac resealable labels are
used for household products and
toiletries, in addition to new
applications for food packages.

MACfleet® pressure sensitive adhesive vinyl is a new,
soft, laminated film that has been specially developed
to provide an excellent level of conformability, superior
opacity as well as high dimensional stability. It is the
ideal film to decorate fleet and public transport
vehicles with irregular, curved or difficult surfaces.

Our double coated pressure sensitive tape is
used in a variety of electronic products,
including the lens for this cellular phone.

Using a printed antenna and a chip inserted into the MACtac lamination process,
these tickets incorporate a Radio Frequency Identification feature that provides
increased entrance security.

products that are designed to withstand many different

environmental conditions yet provide dependable quality and

superior printability to our customers.

Using a variety of adhesive coating techniques, Bemis’ MACtac

business provides customers with removable, transparent,

resealable, repositionable, waterproof, heat resistant and permanent

adhesive paper and film. In addition, we manufacture double sided

adhesive tapes for use as industrial fasteners.  With a premier

quality line of products and a devotion to adhesive material science

technologies, Bemis is well positioned to capitalize on market

trends and strengthen its positions in niche markets.
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O
ur attention to maintaining a world class manufacturing

organization has rewarded our customers with competitive

edge and added flexibility in packaging options.  Over

the past five years, Bemis has devoted substantial resources

to improving capacity and expanding world-class operating facilities

to meet the increasing demand for sophisticated barrier films.

Since the majority of the packages we sell in the Flexible Packaging

business are printed, graphics capabilities are a significant source of

expertise and competitive advantage for Bemis.  We are vertically

integrated, offering customers our graphic design and color separation

expertise. Bemis manufacturing operators work directly with graphic

designers to create the highest quality printed package.  Our 

Manufacturing Excellence

Our lab technicians use sophisticated, state-of-the-art equipment to
evaluate film composition and analyze barrier strength and
consistency.

With modern equipment and customized scheduling systems, our printing presses deliver
high quality images for a competitive price.

Molten polymer resins are extruded through a die into a thin,
four-story tall, multi-layer bubble of film. Once cooled, the film is
slit into two flat sheets and accumulated in rolls for further
lamination or printing.



These cookie images that look “fresh from the oven” have been
separated into seven individual colors and printed on the reverse side
of the film to enhance the luster and durability of the graphics.
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state-of-the-art printing presses significantly improve our

manufacturing efficiencies with robotics to reduce press idle-time

during change over to new colors.

During fiscal 2000, we initiated a Six Sigma program to improve 

efficiency in our operations.  Six Sigma refers to a philosophy of

focusing a business team on best practices to consistently meet both

customer requirements and measurable financial performance goals.  

Initial efforts are being focused on operations that possess the greatest

opportunity for visible improvement.  Using Six Sigma, we expect

to deliver measurable improvement in production efficiencies and

financial performance, and to extend the initiative to other product lines

in the future.

Under a magnifying glass, this photo-quality graphic design becomes
a series of color dots that must be separated and precisely
reproduced to deliver a lifelike image.

Our focused medical packaging
factories meet the medical device
industry's stringent manufacturing
quality standards for sterile packaging.
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F
or over a decade, we have approached our leading markets

using a “focused factory” manufacturing blueprint in which we

dedicate entire manufacturing facilities to production of a 

particular type of packaging or process.  Beyond these

focused factories, we have also implemented this approach within

diversified manufacturing operations by dedicating machinery to 

specific markets like cheese, processed meat, and fresh red meat.  

This approach to process efficiency allows us to significantly reduce

equipment downtime for product changes, control inventory levels

and meet delivery schedules. 

Focused on Efficiency

Pet food packaging is the largest market served by our
paper packaging product line. By focusing one of our
paper packaging facilities exclusively on pet food
packaging, we improved equipment scheduling efficiencies
and customer teamwork.

Bemis’ polyethylene products focused factory was
established to support the bakery industry. This
successful operation manufactures over 4 billion
bakery bags annually.

Our three confectionery packaging operations focus on a manufacturing
process that prints, laminates, and applies a cold seal cohesive sealant in
a single machine pass, maximizing processing speed and throughput. Cold
seal adhesive is pressure sealed, not heat sealed, allowing customers to
fill packages with very high speed machines without using heat which
may damage the product.
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O
ur newly acquired specialty films business has extended the

Bemis product reach into shrink film packaging for fresh 

red meat, cheese, poultry and industrial markets.  With

operations in the United States, the United Kingdom, and

Brazil, the shrink film business expands the Bemis manufacturing

footprint worldwide and supplements our existing high barrier product

lines manufactured and marketed in those countries.  This patented

shrink film technology was previously unavailable to Bemis and

complements our material science expertise, creating new opportunities

for innovation in shrink as well as other high barrier film products. 

Bemis has also acquired Kanzaki’s direct thermal pressure sensitive

materials product line in the United States.  This expands the breadth

of the roll label product line as well as its customer base.  Direct

thermal pressure sensitive products, one of the fastest growing market

segments in the roll label market, are used in variable printing

applications such as deli weighing machines, luggage tags, shipping

labels and medical laboratory environments.  These tailored

labels are printed on demand without the need of an ink cartridge.  

A printed label is created when heat and pressure release the ink that has

been embedded into the paper.  Beginning in 2001, our pressure

sensitive materials operations will use existing Bemis facilities to apply the

adhesive material to the specialized paper and ship it to customers in the

United States.

Expanded Capabilities

Meat and cheese shrink packaging are the primary markets for our newly
acquired specialty films product line.

Direct thermal pressure
sensitive labels are used in
a variety of applications.



“One Bemis”
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O
ur customers include the largest and most innovative 

consumer products and food companies in the world.  

These companies are progressive, innovative leaders in

the industry and continually challenge the status quo to

meet the needs of their consumers in the most cost-effective way.

In order to ensure that all of our customers benefit from the specialized

expertise and technology in each of our focused factories and varying

product lines, we have developed an approach that we call “One

Bemis”.  The “One Bemis” approach brings our resources together as

a team effort to improve responsiveness, creativity, accuracy, efficiency

and effectiveness of customer interaction.  Each team is lead by a

key customer contact manager who coordinates the activities of sales

and marketing, manufacturing, new product development and

Customer Focus

Special resins are required to provide a customized degree of oxygen and
moisture transmission to maximize freshness and shelf life for fresh
lettuce. Different types of fresh vegetables require varying ratios of these
special resins to meet shelf life requirements.

Last year, Bemis and General Mills received DuPont’s Silver Award
for this innovative, single-serving yogurt package. The special film
components of the package provide very specific oxygen and
light barriers to protect product flavor and nutrients.

Bemis’ IntegraScore™ feature permits easy access to the new
slider in this shredded cheese package without compromising
the package integrity provided by the specialty barrier films.

Bemis processed meat packaging films are specifically engineered for
maximum shrink-back, shelf life extension, and crystal clarity to provide
a clear, tough, attractive total package. Our EZ Peel feature improves the
convenience of the package for consumers.

The “One Bemis” philosophy: 

“We will bring the best of what Bemis has to offer to each and every customer.” 



17

technical support, graphic design and e-business system

communication.  The level of involvement of each resource

depends on the degree of sophistication and needs of the customer.

In addition to Bemis resources, several teams include representatives

from customer facilities in order to accommodate their marketing as

well as manufacturing requirements.

The benefits of this “One Bemis” philosophy are certainly not limited 

to customers.  With all of our unique capabilities marketed in 

this combined effort, customers are more likely to view Bemis as a

“one-stop shop” for more of their packaging needs.  This increases

market share, revenue, and profitability and further strengthens 

valuable customer relationships.  

Tissue overwrap is a multi-layer film that is often printed
with complex graphics, like this baby design. Unprinted
overwrap is also being used to unitize pallets of paper
products, reducing shipping weight and disposal costs by
replacing corrugated boxes.

This new candy package incorporates high
quality rotogravure graphics with stand-up
pouch convenience to catch the eye of 
the consumer. Fruity cereals use a multi-layer barrier film package to protect

freshness and seal in the flavor aroma. These Malt-O-Meal cereal
bags incorporate a reclosable profile for customer convenience.
Bemis also manufactures a range of multi-layer film liner bags
for boxed cereals to meet product requirements impacted by
ingredients, distribution channels, targeted age groups and other
subtle market considerations.

This produce bag incorporates a colorful reclosable zipper feature that
is specially designed for easier alignment and closure.

Printed film packages display colorful graphics and are designed with an
open flap that allows consumers to touch the material while the product
is kept inside.



Clear, colorful graphics and convenience
features like easy to open packages and
built in carrying handles catch the eye
of the consumer.
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Bemis flexographic printing expertise takes
advantage of the latest computer driven laser
technologies to deliver photo quality graphics at a
competitive price.

We have enjoyed long term relationships with many of our customers

and have been recognized by our customers and suppliers for our

contributions to innovation and quality in the packaging industry. 

Our pressure sensitive adhesive products are used for food and 

consumer products packaging, graphic design artwork, children's

stickers, postage stamps, and a myriad of other products.  As the

visual communications market continues to grow and new printing

techniques are developed, we are introducing products to meet the

evolving needs of our customers.

Our polyethylene pillow shaped film packages are ideal for frozen 
food products that require high puncture protection and low cost
manufacturing combined with “eye-catching” graphics.

This polyethylene film bag has a built in one-way
valve that allows air to escape during the high
speed filling process to improve efficiency on
customer packaging machinery.

Our roll label products are used to create colorful labels that bond tightly to these lip
gloss products.

Customer Focus cont…
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In 2000, we held our second annual MACtac European Design

Award Show for self-adhesive products, combining the versatility

of our products with the talents of creative artists to showcase the

most innovative design applications.  We are committed to

providing the growing, worldwide pressure sensitive markets with

versatile and quality products in a broad range of product lines.

This bus in Spain has been covered with two kinds of
MACMark™ film to create a powerful advertisement.
MACMark™ removable quality adhesives will not leave
any adhesive residue when removed. MACMark™ one-
way vision film allows bus passengers to see through
the film while those outside can only read the
message on the windows.

These self-adhesive stamps are printed in France on a MACtac specialty product
for the country’s postal service.

This 1,000 square meter decoration has been displayed on the Toyota Europe building using 
digitally printed MACtac marking films.

An art gallery in Scotland used 12 different colors of MACMark™ vinyl shapes
of varying colors and widths to create a striking floor design. It was so
popular that it was reproduced in other galleries in Scotland, England, Poland,
Switzerland and Italy.

This metalized polypropylene
MACtac label received the
Exxon Mobil Pyramid Award
for Excellence in Packaging
and Label Design. These
decorated sport bottles will be
sold at Busch Gardens and
numerous other amusement
parks and fairs.



20

Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Business Segments (dollars in millions) 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Flexible Packaging

Net sales $1,658.6 $1,469.6 $1,399.8 $1,428.6 $1,213.7 

Operating profit *    221.3 187.2 156.3 142.6 142.5 

Average investment 1,285.1 1,007.4 984.4 912.0 739.3 

Operating profit as % of net sales 13.3% 12.7% 11.2% 10.0% 11.7%

Operating profit as % of average investment 17.2% 18.6% 15.9% 15.6% 19.3%

Pressure Sensitive Materials

Net sales $ 506.0 $ 493.0 $ 489.6 $ 489.0 $ 476.4 

Operating profit    40.1 44.3 51.0 67.2 59.6 

Average investment 274.0 236.6 230.4 222.5 200.4 

Operating profit as % of net sales 7.9% 9.0% 10.4% 13.7% 12.5%

Operating profit as % of average investment 14.6% 18.7% 22.1% 30.2% 29.7%

Total Company

Net sales $2,164.6 $1,962.6 $1,889.4 $1,917.6 $1,690.1 

Operating profit *    261.4 231.5 207.3 209.8 202.1 

Average investment 1,559.1 1,244.0 1,214.8 1,134.5 939.7 

Operating profit as % of net sales 12.1% 11.8% 11.0% 10.9% 12.0%

Operating profit as % of average investment 16.8% 18.6% 17.1% 18.5% 21.5%

Note: Operating profit is defined as profit before general corporate expense, interest expense, income taxes, and minority interest.

*  Reflects gains of $5.8 million and $2.8 million in 1997 and 1996, respectively, realized on the sale of machinery operations, and restructuring charges of 
$7.8 million in 1997.

Five-Year Summary
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Three-Year Review of Results
Percent

2000 1999 1998
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of products sold 79.3 78.4 79.4
Gross margin 20.7 21.6 20.6
Selling, general, and 
administrative expenses 8.9 9.9 9.8
All other expenses 2.0 2.2 2.1
Income before income taxes 9.8 9.5 8.7
Provision for income taxes 3.8 3.7 3.3
Net income 6.0% 5.8% 5.4%

Effective tax rate 38.3% 38.3% 38.7%

Summary
In 2000, the Company continued its focus on expanding core

businesses by both internal investment and acquisitions. Capital
expenditures for 2000 were $100.4 million compared to $137.4
million in 1999 and $139.8 million in 1998.  Throughout this three-
year period, the Company has focused on building and expanding
its manufacturing capacity to support its technological strengths.  In
addition to this aggressive internal capital investment, the
Company also invested heavily in business acquisitions.

On September 8, 2000, the Company purchased the pressure
sensitive materials product line of Kanzaki Specialty Papers, Inc.,
which had approximately $78.0 million in net sales in 1999. This
business supplies direct thermal pressure sensitive products to
printers for labels used for bar coding, shipping and inventory
labeling, and a variety of other end uses.  This acquisition
provides a significant new product line in the Company’s Pressure
Sensitive Materials segment.

On August 31, 2000, the Company purchased the specialty
plastic films business of Viskase Companies, Inc., which supplies
a variety of shrinkable barrier bags, films, and cook-in bags to
beef, pork, poultry, and cheese processors.  It had net sales of
approximately $150.0 million in 1999. This acquisition has
complex technologies that both complement and extend the
technologies employed in the Company’s very successful
flexible packaging business. In addition, this acquisition
brings to the Company immediate access to important fresh
meat markets and is a natural extension of the strong position
and relationships already established in the processed meat,
cheese, and poultry markets.  Included in the acquisition are
manufacturing facilities in Centerville, Iowa; Pauls Valley,
Oklahoma; Swansea, Wales; and São Paulo, Brazil.

Effective August 1, 2000, the Company purchased the assets
of the flexible packaging business of Arrow Industries, which had
net sales of approximately $33.0 million during the preceding
twelve months. Equipment acquired with this business is being
strategically deployed into existing facilities to provide
additional capacity.

On January 6, 2000, the Company purchased the remaining
13 percent minority interest in Morgan Adhesives Company
(MACtac).  The Company issued 1,730,952 shares of its common
stock and paid $3.4 million in cash.  Upon the acquisition of these
minority shares, MACtac became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bemis Company, Inc.

Overall results for 2000 produced net sales of $2.16 billion
compared to $1.96 billion and $1.89 billion in 1999 and 1998,
respectively.  Net sales and cost of products sold have been
restated for all periods presented, in accordance with new
accounting guidance, for the reclassification of certain freight-out
costs from a reduction in net sales to cost of products sold. The
net sales increase of 10.3 percent in 2000, which occurred
principally in the Flexible Packaging segment, was led by strong
unit volume growth in high barrier products.  Net income for
2000 totaled $130.6 million compared with $114.8 million and
$101.1 million for 1999 and 1998, respectively.  Diluted earnings
per share were $2.44 for 2000, $2.18 for 1999, and $1.90 for 1998.
Excluding the effects of business acquisitions and dispositions,
2000 net sales increased 6.2 percent from 1999 while operating
profit increased 9.5 percent from the 1999 level.

Net sales for the Flexible Packaging segment increased 12.9
percent with operating profits increasing 18.2 percent from the
levels achieved in 1999. Strong sales increases in high barrier
products and polyethylene products provided the base for
improved operating profits.  Flexible Packaging operating profits
were $221.3 million in 2000, or 13.3 percent of net sales, compared
to $187.2 million, or 12.7 percent of net sales in 1999, and $156.3
million, or 11.2 percent of net sales in 1998.  Increased unit sales and
a continuing focus to lower the cost structure largely account for the
improvements in operating profit.

Net sales for the Pressure Sensitive Materials segment
increased 2.6 percent over the 1999 level. Operating profit,
however, decreased 9.5 percent as this business segment
continued to face less favorable economic conditions in North
America, higher raw material costs, and increased price
competition in certain markets. Pressure Sensitive Materials
operating profits were $40.1 million in 2000, or 7.9 percent of net
sales, compared to $44.3 million, or 9.0 percent of net sales in
1999, and $51.0 million, or 10.4 percent of net sales in 1998.
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Outlook
In 2000, the Company took advantage of opportunities to

further strengthen core capabilities through several strategic
acquisitions.  These acquisitions will increase our market share, our
customer base, and our technological resources, and introduce us
to new markets.  The Company expects sales to continue to rise six
to eight percent annually over the next several years as our Flexible
Packaging business benefits from the continuing trend of flexible
packaging replacing rigid packaging and from the ongoing
consolidation of customers with which the Company has strong
relationships. Future acquisitions could further enhance sales
growth.  In 2001, we expect some weakness in industrial markets
served primarily by our Pressure Sensitive Materials business and
portions of our polyethylene packaging product line.  We expect,
however, that with greater than 65 percent of our products used in
the food industry, our exposure to this market will limit the adverse
impact of any downturn in the economy.

Costs and Expenses
Cost of products sold as a percentage of net sales was 79.3

percent for 2000 compared to 78.4 percent for 1999 and 79.4
percent for 1998.  The increase experienced in 2000 was due to
increasing material costs which were partially offset by lower
product conversion and employee benefit costs.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses decreased $1.5
million in absolute dollars in 2000 versus 1999 after increasing
$8.0 million in 1999 versus 1998.  Expressed as a percent of net
sales, selling, general, and administrative expenses were 8.9
percent, 9.9 percent, and 9.8 percent for 2000, 1999, and 1998
respectively. The Company’s focus on improved cost control
together with lower employee benefit costs largely account for
the improvements achieved in 2000.

Research and development expense was $10.1 million in
2000, $11.7 million in 1999, and $12.2 million in 1998.  The
decrease occurred principally within the Pressure Sensitive
Materials segment resulting from increased focus on internal
efficiencies to assist in its efforts to deal with less favorable
economic conditions in North America and increased price
competition in certain markets.

A higher debt level in 2000 together with rising interest rates,
increased interest expense to $31.6 million compared to $21.2
million in 1999 and $21.9 million in 1998.  The increased debt
level during 2000 was principally due to business unit acquisitions
and common stock repurchases.

Other costs reflect expense of $1.4 million for 2000 versus
expense of $6.9 million and $0.3 million in 1999 and 1998,
respectively.  The 1999 expense was principally due to losses from
our Brazilian joint venture that included $1.7 million for currency
losses and $2.6 million for relocation and reorganization costs.
The improved operating results from the joint venture are
reflected in the lower 2000 costs.

The reduction in minority interest is due to the January 2000
purchase of the 13 percent minority interest in MACtac.  Upon

the acquisition of these minority shares, MACtac became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bemis Company, Inc.

Return on Investment
Return on average stockholders’ equity in 2000 was 17.1 percent

compared to 16.2 percent in 1999 and 14.9 percent in 1998.
Operating profit as a percent of average investment was 16.8

percent in 2000 compared to 18.6 percent in 1999 and 17.1
percent in 1998.

Operating profit as a percent of average investment for the
Flexible Packaging segment was 17.2 percent in 2000 compared to
18.6 percent in 1999 and 15.9 percent in 1998.  This same ratio
for the Pressure Sensitive Materials segment was 14.6 percent in
2000 compared to 18.7 percent in 1999 and 22.1 percent in 1998.

Return on average total capital was 10.8 percent in 2000,
10.9 percent in 1999, and 10.3 percent in 1998.  Total capital is
defined as the sum of all short-term and long-term interest-
bearing debt, including obligations under capital leases,
stockholders’ equity, and deferred taxes.  Return on total capital
is based on net income adjusted for interest expense on an after-
tax basis.

Capital Expenditures
Capital expenditures in 2000 were $100.4 million compared

to $137.4 million in 1999 and $139.8 million in 1998, including
capitalized interest of $1.7 million, $1.6 million, and $1.3 million
for 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively.  In 2001, management
anticipates expenditures in the $120 million range.  The majority
of these expenditures, made from internally generated funds, will
be for continued expansion of the Company’s growth businesses,
with major equipment purchases planned for the Flexible
Packaging segment in both high barrier and polyethylene
product lines.

Capital Structure, Liquidity, and Cash Flow 
Stockholders’ equity increased in 2000 to $798.8 million, up

from $725.9 million in 1999 and $687.9 million in 1998, primarily
due to earnings reduced by dividend payments and common stock
repurchases. In 2000, $42.8 million of common stock was
repurchased compared to $4.1 million in 1999 and $41.3 million in
1998.  Common stock totaling $0.48 million and $0.05 million was
issued in 2000 and 1999, respectively, in connection with the
Company’s stock-based compensation programs. Additionally,
common stock totaling $54.8 million was issued in 2000 in
connection with the acquisition of the minority interest 
of MACtac.

Total debt increased $293.7 million in 2000 to $672.8 million,
resulting in a total debt to total capital ratio of 42.7 percent
compared to 31.7 percent in 1999 and 32.8 percent in 1998.  The
significant increase in 2000 is due to acquisitions which primarily
account for the $147.4 million increase in goodwill and $103.2
million increase in intangible assets, deferred charges, and other
assets.  In 2001, total debt is expected to decrease due to continuing
strong cash flow from operations.
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Working capital (excluding short-term borrowings and the
current portion of long-term debt) increased by $42.6 million to
$379.7 million in 2000 following an increase of $29.3 million to
$337.1 million in 1999 and a decrease of $7.5 million to $307.8
million in 1998.  The current ratio was 1.3:1 in 2000 compared
to 2.3:1 in 1999 and 2.2:1 in 1998, reflecting the short-term
debt increase in 2000 associated with acquisitions.

The Company’s cash flow remained strong in 2000 as cash
provided by operating activities was $210.2 million compared to
$186.1 million in 1999 and $234.6 million in 1998. The
following schedule presents the major sources and uses of cash
for the Company in 2000.

Sources and Uses of Cash  (in millions)
Sources

Net income $130.6
Depreciation and amortization 108.1
Deferred income taxes 14.8
Increase in total debt 293.7

Total Sources $547.2

Uses
Capital expenditures 100.4
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired 295.1
Increase in working capital*  

(net of effects of acquisitions) 42.7
Common stock repurchases 42.8
Dividends 51.1
Net change in deferred charges and credits 13.3
Other 1.8

Total Uses $547.2
* Excluding short-term interest-bearing debt.

The Company’s pretax interest coverage was 7.7 times in
2000 compared to 9.8 times in 1999 and 8.6 times in 1998.
Pretax income increased to $211.5 million in 2000 from $185.9
million in 1999 and $165.0 million in 1998.  Interest expense
was $31.6 million in 2000, $21.2 million in 1999, and $21.9
million in 1998.  Following are pretax interest coverage ratios
for the last five years:

Coverage of Pretax Interest by Pretax Income and Interest

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
13.4 9.7 8.6 9.8 7.7

At year-end 2000 the Company had credit lines of $584
million, including a $334 million revolving credit facility and a
$250 million short-term bridge credit facility.  These lines are
used primarily to support the Company’s issuance of commercial
paper which carries an A-1, P-1 rating.  The Company also has
the capability of issuing up to approximately $100 million of
Extendable Commercial Notes (ECNs) which are short-term
instruments whose maturity can be extended to 390 days from
the date of issuance.  As of December 31, 2000, the Company

had $545 million of commercial paper outstanding.  In January
2001, the Company registered for issuance  $250 million of debt
securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Foreign Currency Exposures
The Company’s Belgium operation enters into forward

foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge certain foreign
currency denominated receivables and payables, principally for
transactions in non-euro zone countries.  Exchange gains and
losses arising from these transactions are deferred and recognized
when the transaction for which the hedge was obtained is
finalized.  At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company had
outstanding forward foreign currency exchange contracts
aggregating $7,270,000 and $7,921,000, respectively.  The
introduction of the “euro” on January 1, 1999, by the European
Economic and Monetary Union has reduced the exposure to
currency fluctuations among participating countries resulting in
reduced volume of forward foreign currency exchange contracts.
Forward foreign currency exchange contracts generally have
maturities of less than nine months and relate primarily to major
Western European currencies. Counterparties to the forward
foreign currency exchange contracts are major financial
institutions.  Credit loss from counterparty nonperformance is
not anticipated.  Based on quoted year-end market prices of its
forward foreign currency exchange contracts, the Company
would not have experienced material gains or losses at
December 31, 2000, and  1999, had outstanding contracts been
settled at those respective dates.

The Company has a one-third interest in a Brazilian joint
venture, ITAP/Bemis Ltda. The joint venture has foreign
denominated debt exposures that are substantially hedged.  Net
conversion losses on the debt are recorded as an expense.

Income Taxes
The Company’s effective tax rate was 38.3 percent in 2000

versus 38.3 percent in 1999 and 38.7 percent in 1998.  The
difference between the Company’s overall tax rate and the U.S.
statutory tax rate of 35 percent in 2000, 1999, and 1998
principally relates to state and local income taxes net of the
federal income tax benefit.

New Accounting Pronouncements
In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board

(FASB) issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.”  This statement, which is
required to be adopted for annual periods beginning after June
15, 2000, establishes standards for recognition and measurement
of derivatives and hedging activities.  Implementation of this
standard on January 1, 2001, will not have a material effect on
the Company’s financial position or results of operation.
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Market Prices and Dividends
The Bemis quarterly dividend was increased by 4.3 percent

in the first quarter of 2000 to 24 cents per share from 23 cents.
This followed first quarter increases of 4.5 percent in 1999 to 23
cents per share from 22 cents, and 10.0 percent in 1998 to 22
cents per share from 20 cents in 1997.

Common dividends for 2000 were 96 cents per share, up from
92 cents in 1999 and 88 cents in 1998.  The 2000 dividend payout
ratio was 39.3 percent compared to 42.2 percent in 1999 and 46.3
percent in 1998.  Based on the market price of $34.88 per share at
the beginning of 2000, the dividend yield was 2.8 percent.

Stockholders’ equity per common share (book value per
share) increased to $15.18 per share in 2000, up from $13.91 per
share in 1999 and $13.16 per share in 1998.  Trading volume in
Bemis common stock was 41.6 million shares in 2000.

In February 2001, the Board of Directors increased the
quarterly cash dividend on common stock to 25 cents per share
from 24 cents, a 4.2 percent increase.

Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains certain estimates, predictions,

and other “forward-looking statements” (as defined in the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and within the meaning
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and
Section 21E of the Securities Act of 1934).  The words “believe,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “target,” “may,” “will,”
“plan,” “project,” “should,” “continue,” or the negative thereof or
other similar expressions, or discussions of future goals or
aspirations, which are predictions of or indicate future events and
trends and which do not relate to historical matters, identify
forward-looking statements. Such statements are based on
information available to management as of the time of such
statements and relate to, among other things, expectations of the
business environment in which the Company operates,
projections of future performance, perceived opportunities in the
market, and statements regarding the Company’s mission and
vision.  Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown

risks, uncertainties, and other factors, which may cause the actual
results, performance, or achievements of the Company to differ
materially from anticipated future results, performance, or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements.  The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a
result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ from those
expected include, but are not limited to, general economic
conditions such as inflation, interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates; results from acquisitions may differ from what we
anticipate; competitive conditions within the Company’s markets,
including the acceptance of new and existing products offered by
the Company; price changes for raw materials and the ability of
the Company to pass these price changes on to its customers or
otherwise manage commodity price fluctuation risks; the presence
of adequate cash available for investment in the Company’s
business in order to maintain desired debt levels; unanticipated
consequences of the European Monetary Union’s conversion to
the euro; changes in governmental regulation, especially in the
areas of environmental, health and safety matters, and foreign
investment; unexpected outcomes in the Company’s current and
future litigation proceedings; and changes in the Company’s
labor relations.  These and other risks, uncertainties, and
assumptions identified from time to time in the Company’s filings
with the Securities Exchange Commission, including without
limitation, its Annual Report on Form 10-K and its quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, could cause the Company’s actual future
results to differ materially from those projected in the forward-
looking statements.  In addition, the Company’s actual future
results could differ materially from those projected in the
forward-looking statement as a result of changes in the
assumptions used in making such forward-looking statements.

BEMIS COMMON STOCK PERFORMANCE *

2000 1999 1998
Dividend Dividend Dividend

High Low Paid High Low Paid High Low Paid

First Quarter $36.88 $27.50 $.24 $38.69 $31.06 $.23 $46.94 $40.25 $.22
Second Quarter 38.50 33.13 .24 39.94 30.44 .23 46.00 40.63 .22
Third Quarter 37.13 31.19 .24 39.88 32.81 .23 41.00 34.94 .22
Fourth Quarter 34.50 24.06 .24 34.94 30.94 .23 42.19 33.94 .22

*New York Stock Exchange:  BMS
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts) Years Ended December 31,
2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

Operating Data

Net sales $2,164.6 $1,962.6 $1,889.4 $1,917.6 $1,690.1

Cost of products sold and other expenses 1,921.5 1,755.5 1,702.5 1,733.8 1,510.7

Interest expense 31.6 21.2 21.9 18.9 13.4

Income before income taxes 211.5 185.9 165.0 164.9 166.0

Provision for income taxes 80.9 71.1 63.9 63.5 63.0

Net income 130.6 114.8 101.1 101.4 103.0

Net income as a percent of net sales 6.0% 5.8% 5.4% 5.3% 6.1%

Common Share Data

Basic earnings per share $ 2.46 $ 2.19 $ 1.91 $ 1.91 $ 1.96

Diluted earnings per share 2.44 2.18 1.90 1.88 1.93

Dividends per share .96 .92 .88 .80 .72

Book value per share 15.18 13.91 13.16 12.60 11.47

Stock price/earnings ratio range 10-16x 14-18x 18-25x 19-25x 14-19x

Weighted-average common shares 

outstanding for computation of 

diluted earnings per share 53,552,703 52,657,068 53,323,704 53,879,948 53,252,250

Common shares outstanding at December 31, 52,602,414 52,188,715 52,269,158 52,967,511 52,360,699 

Capital Structure and Other Data

Current ratio 1.3 2.3 2.2 2.2 2.4

Working capital 144.9 330.3 301.3 311.0 308.4

Total assets 1,888.6 1,532.1 1,482.0 1,408.4 1,224.7

Short-term debt 234.8 6.8 6.5 4.3 4.7

Long-term debt 438.0 372.3 371.4 316.8 241.1

Stockholders’ equity 798.8 725.9 687.9 667.2 600.6

Return on average stockholders’ equity 17.1% 16.2% 14.9% 16.0% 18.0%

Return on average total capital 10.8% 10.9% 10.3% 11.3% 13.0%

Depreciation and amortization 108.1 97.7 88.9 78.9 66.2

Capital expenditures 100.4 137.4 139.8 167.5 112.0

Number of common stockholders 5,005 5,316 5,721 5,874 5,947

Number of employees 10,969 9,534 9,364 9,275 8,876

Five-Year Consolidated Review
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

The management of Bemis Company, Inc., is responsible for the integrity, objectivity, and accuracy of the financial statements of the
Company.  The financial statements are prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, and using management’s best estimates and judgments, where appropriate.  The financial information presented
throughout the Annual Report is consistent with that in the financial statements.

Management is also responsible for maintaining a system of internal accounting controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance that the books and records reflect the transactions of the Company, and that assets are protected against loss from unauthorized
use or disposition.  Such a system is maintained through written accounting policies and procedures, administered by trained Company
personnel and updated on a continuing basis to ensure their adequacy to meet the changing requirements of our business. The Company
also maintains an internal audit department that evaluates the adequacy of and investigates adherence to these controls and procedures.  In
addition, the Company requires that all of its affairs, as reflected by the actions of its employees, will be conducted on a high ethical plane.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, are retained to audit the financial statements.  Their audit is conducted in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and includes selective reviews of internal accounting controls.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which is composed solely of outside directors, meets quarterly with management, the
internal audit manager, and independent accountants to review the work of each and to satisfy itself that the respective parties are properly
discharging their responsibilities.  Both PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the internal audit manager have had unrestricted access to the
Audit Committee, without the presence of Company management, for the purpose of discussing the results of their examination and their
opinions on the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality of financial reporting.

John H. Roe Jeffrey H. Curler Benjamin R. Field, III Gene C. Wulf
Chairman President and Senior Vice President, Vice President and 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Controller
and Treasurer

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Bemis Company, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of stockholders’
equity, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Bemis Company, Inc., and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.  We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 23, 2001 

Management’s Responsibility Statement
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Net sales $2,164,583 $1,962,628 $1,889,365 

Costs and expenses:

Cost of products sold 1,717,259 1,538,957 1,499,576 

Selling, general, and administrative expenses 192,275 193,793 185,841 

Research and development 10,080 11,684 12,224 

Interest expense 31,609 21,218 21,866 

Other costs (income), net 1,362 6,877 332 

Minority interest in net income 496 4,224 4,496 

Income before income taxes 211,502 185,875 165,030 

Provision for income taxes 80,900 71,100 63,900 

Net income $ 130,602 $ 114,775 $ 101,130 

Basic earnings per share $ 2.46 $ 2.19 $ 1.91

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.44 $ 2.18 $ 1.90

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Income
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(dollars in thousands, except per share amount)
December 31,

Assets 2000 1999

Current assets:

Cash $ 28,910 $ 18,187 

Accounts receivable, less $13,189 and $13,201

for doubtful accounts and allowances 301,974 257,260 

Inventories 274,323 274,597 

Prepaid expenses 34,752 33,537 

Total current assets 639,959 583,581 

Property and equipment:

Land and land improvements 17,258 16,237 

Buildings and leasehold improvements 247,965 239,889 

Machinery and equipment 1,046,998 988,715 

Total property and equipment 1,312,221 1,244,841 

Less - accumulated depreciation 486,467 468,600 

Net property and equipment 825,754 776,241 

Other long-term assets:

Goodwill 297,898 150,496 

Intangible assets, deferred charges, and other assets 125,032 21,825 

Total other long-term assets 422,930 172,321 

Total assets $1,888,643 $1,532,143 

continued

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet
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December 31,

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2000 1999

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt $ 227,459 $ 1,049 

Short-term borrowings 7,353 5,741 

Accounts payable 207,115 189,749 

Accrued liabilities:

Salaries and wages 43,661 39,861 

Income taxes 471 7,540 

Other taxes 9,038 9,328 

Total current liabilities 495,097 253,268 

Long-term debt, less current portion 437,952 372,267 

Deferred taxes 103,621 89,635 

Other liabilities and deferred credits 51,646 51,580 

Total liabilities 1,088,316 766,750 

Minority interest 1,570 39,498 

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $.10 par value:

Authorized - 248,000,000 shares

Issued - 60,972,802 and 59,098,203 shares 6,097 5,910 

Capital in excess of par value 237,100 181,957 

Retained earnings 854,506 775,011 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (49,855) (30,644)

Common stock held in treasury,

8,370,388 and 6,909,488 shares, at cost (249,091) (206,339)

Total stockholders’ equity 798,757 725,895 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,888,643 $1,532,143 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 130,602 $ 114,775 $ 101,130 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 108,130 97,717 88,910 

Minority interest in net income 496 4,224 4,496 

Deferred income taxes, noncurrent portion 14,783 5,478 3,516 

Losses of unconsolidated affiliated companies 2,732 7,874 1,546 

Tax benefits related to stock incentive programs 2,725 960 6,612 

Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment 234 624 (74)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable (50,915) (22,064) (9,816)

Inventories 19,525 (36,554) 28,332 

Prepaid expenses 1,034 1,362 12,565 

Accounts payable (6,790) 1,333 (13,020)

Accrued salaries and wages 5,233 9,045 6,575 

Accrued income taxes (4,173) 2,831 3,944 

Accrued other taxes (145) 752 429 

Changes in other liabilities and deferred credits 33 (3,250) (2,002)

Changes in deferred charges and other investments (13,320) 992 1,497 

Net cash provided by operating activities 210,184 186,099 234,640 

Cash flows from investing activities:

Additions to property and equipment (100,420) (137,382) (139,833)

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (295,075) (1,424) (50,206)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 1,943 2,201 3,993 

Other (1,082) 61 11 

Net cash used by investing activities $(394,634) $(136,544) $(186,035)

continued

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Years Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term debt $ 66,713 $ 3,130 $ 56,946 

Repayment of long-term debt (973) (2,204) (2,374)

Change in short-term borrowings 2,034 2,520 1,272 

Change in current portion of long-term debt 226,410 (1,897) 574 

Cash dividends paid (51,107) (48,126) (46,701)

Subsidiary dividends to minority stockholders (51) (1,835)

Purchase of common stock for the treasury (42,752) (4,133) (41,344)

Stock incentive programs (2,726) (957) (6,312)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 197,548 (51,667) (39,774)

Effect of exchange rates on cash (2,375) (3,439) 1,080 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 10,723 (5,551) 9,911 

Cash balance at beginning of year 18,187 23,738 13,827 

Cash balance at end of year $ 28,910 $ 18,187 $ 23,738 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Fair value of assets acquired $339,144 $ 54,180 

Less liabilities assumed 27,608 3,974 

Minority interest acquired 38,388 $ 1,424 

Net value acquired 349,924 1,424 50,206 

Common stock issued 54,849

Cash used for acquisitions $295,075 $ 1,424 $ 50,206 

Interest paid during the year $ 33,275 $ 22,941 $ 22,900 

Income taxes paid during the year $ 70,638 $ 62,504 $ 48,897 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Bemis Company, Inc. and Subsidiaries

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Capital In Accumulated Other Common Total
Common Excess Of Retained Comprehensive Stock Held Stockholders’

Stock Par Value Earnings Income (Loss) In Treasury Equity

Balance at December 31, 1997 $5,864 $174,562 $653,933 $ (6,263) $(160,862) $667,234 

Net income for 1998 101,130 101,130 
Translation adjustment for 1998 (72) (72)
Pension liability adjustment, net of $102 tax benefit 219 219 
Total comprehensive income 101,277 
Cash dividends paid on common stock $.88 per share (46,701) (46,701)
Stock incentive programs and related tax effects 42 7,346 7,388 
Purchase of 1,110,843 shares of common stock (41,344) (41,344)

Balance at December 31, 1998 5,906 181,908 708,362 (6,116) (202,206) 687,854 

Net income for 1999 114,775 114,775 
Translation adjustment for 1999 (24,353) (24,353)
Pension liability adjustment, net of $(536) tax benefit (175) (175)
Total comprehensive income 90,247 
Cash dividends paid on common stock $.92 per share (48,126) (48,126)
Stock incentive programs and related tax effects 4 49 53 
Purchase of 122,599 shares of common stock (4,133) (4,133)

Balance at December 31, 1999 5,910 181,957 775,011 (30,644) (206,339) 725,895 

Net income for 2000 130,602 130,602 
Translation adjustment for 2000 (19,178) (19,178)
Pension liability adjustment, net of $(642) tax benefit (33) (33)
Total comprehensive income 111,391 
Cash dividends paid on common stock $.96 per share (51,107) (51,107)
1,730,952 shares of common stock issued

in acquisition of minority interest 173 54,676 54,849 
Stock incentive programs and related tax effects 14 467 481 
Purchase of 1,460,900 shares of common stock (42,752) (42,752)

Balance at December 31, 2000 $6,097 $237,100 $854,506 $(49,855) $(249,091) $798,757 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity



33

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority
owned subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany transactions
and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue recognition: Sales and related cost of sales are
recognized primarily upon shipment of products.  Approximately
one percent of sales were recognized prior to shipment as a result
of customers’ request necessitated by the customers’ changing
business conditions.  In all such instances the Company has
accounted for these transactions in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles as well as the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101.
During 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
through its Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) reached a consensus
that amounts billed for shipping and handling should be included
in revenue and costs incurred by the seller for shipping and
handling should be classified as cost of products sold.
Accordingly, net sales and cost of products sold have been restated.
Previously, the Company had recorded both revenue and costs of
shipping and handling in net sales.

Research and development: Research and development
expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Earnings per share: Basic earnings per common share are
computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted
earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during
the year including common stock equivalents, if dilutive.

Inventory valuation: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost,
determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, or market.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are stated 
at cost.  Plant and equipment are depreciated for financial
reporting purposes principally using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of assets.  For tax purposes, the
Company generally uses accelerated methods of depreciation.
The tax effect of the difference between book and tax
depreciation has been provided as deferred income taxes.  On
sale or retirement, the asset cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any related
gain or loss is reflected in income.  Maintenance and repairs that
do not improve efficiency or extend economic life are expensed
currently. Interest costs are capitalized for major capital
expenditures during construction.

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of cost over net assets
of businesses acquired.  Goodwill acquired prior to 1971 is not
amortized against income unless a loss of value becomes evident.
Goodwill resulting from investments made subsequent to 1970 is
amortized against income using the straight line method over
various periods ranging from 20 to 40 years. The Company
periodically reviews goodwill for impairment and assesses
whether significant events or changes in business circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be fully
recoverable.  Recoverability is assessed by comparing anticipated
undiscounted future cash flows from operations to net book value.

Intangible assets: Intangible assets are being amortized against
income using the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives, with periods ranging up to 20 years. The Company
periodically reviews intangible assets for impairment and assesses
whether significant events or changes in business circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be fully
recoverable. Recoverability is assessed by comparing anticipated
undiscounted future cash flows from operations to net book value.

Taxes on undistributed earnings: No provision is made for U.S.
income taxes on earnings of non-U.S. subsidiary companies
which the Company controls but does not include in the
consolidated federal income tax return since it is management’s
practice and intent to permanently reinvest the earnings.

Translation of foreign currencies: Assets and liabilities are
translated at the exchange rate as of the balance sheet date.  All
revenue and expense accounts are translated at average exchange
rates in effect during the year. Translation adjustments are
recorded as a separate component of equity.

Statement of Cash Flows: For purposes of reporting cash flows,
cash includes cash on hand and demand deposit accounts.

Preferred Stock Purchase Rights: On July 29, 1999, the
Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan
by declaring a dividend of one preferred share purchase right for
each outstanding share of common stock. Under certain
circumstances, a right may be exercised to purchase one two-
hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Preferred Stock for $120,
subject to adjustment.  The rights become exercisable if, subject
to certain exceptions, a person or group acquires beneficial
ownership of 15 percent or more of the Company’s outstanding
common stock or announces an offer which would result in such
person acquiring beneficial ownership of 15 percent or more of
the Company’s outstanding common stock.  If a person or group
acquires beneficial ownership of 15 percent or more of the

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



34

Company’s outstanding common stock, subject to certain
exceptions, each right will entitle its holder to buy common
stock of the Company having a market value of twice the
exercise price of the right.  The rights expire August 23, 2009,
and may be redeemed by the Company for $.001 per right at
any time before a person becomes a beneficial owner of 15
percent or more of the Company’s outstanding common stock.
The Company’s Board of Directors has designated 600,000
shares of Series A Junior Preferred Stock with a par value of $1
per share that relate to the Shareholder Rights Plan.  At
December 31, 2000, none of these shares were issued 
or outstanding.

Financial Instruments: In June 1998, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”  This statement,
as amended, establishes standards for recognition and
measurement of derivatives and hedging activities.
Implementation of this standard, as required on January 1, 2001,
will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial
position or results of operation.

Environmental cost: The Company is involved in a number of
environmental related disputes and claims. The Company
accrues for environmental costs when it is probable that these
costs will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated.  At
December 31, 2000 and 1999, reserves were $401,000 and
$3,359,000, respectively.  Adjustments to the reserve accounts
and costs which were directly expensed for environmental
remediation matters resulted in charges to the income
statements for 2000, 1999, and 1998 of $183,000, $2,046,000,
and $169,000, net of third party reimbursements totaling
$150,000, $442,000, and $186,000, for 2000, 1999, and 1998,
respectively.

Estimates and assumptions required: The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS
On September 8, 2000, the Company purchased the pressure
sensitive materials product line of Kanzaki Specialty Papers, Inc.,
which had approximately $78.0 million in sales in 1999.  This
business supplies direct thermal pressure sensitive products to
printers for labels used for bar coding, shipping and inventory
labeling, and a variety of other end uses.  Assets acquired with
this business include a long-term supply agreement to purchase
Kanzaki’s high quality face paper to which adhesive will be

applied using already available state-of-the-art equipment.  No
equipment or facilities were acquired with this business.  The
total cash purchase price of $45.2 million has been accounted for
under the purchase method of accounting, and results of
operations subsequent to September 7, 2000, are included in
these financial statements.

On August 31, 2000, the Company purchased the specialty
plastic films business of Viskase Companies, Inc., which supplies
a variety of shrinkable barrier bags, films, and cook-in bags to
beef, pork, poultry, and cheese processors.  It had net sales of
approximately $150.0 million in 1999. This acquisition has
complex technologies that both complement and extend the
technologies employed in the Company’s very successful flexible
packaging business.  In addition, this acquisition brings to the
Company immediate access to important fresh meat markets and
is a natural extension of the strong position and relationships
already established in the processed meat, cheese, and poultry
markets.  Included in the acquisition are manufacturing facilities
in Centerville, Iowa; Pauls Valley, Oklahoma; Swansea, Wales;
and São Paulo, Brazil.  The total cash purchase price of $226.2
million has been accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, and results of operations subsequent to August 30,
2000, are included in these financial statements.

Effective August 1, 2000, the Company purchased the assets of
the flexible packaging business of Arrow Industries, which had
net sales of approximately $33.0 million during the preceding
twelve months.  Equipment acquired with this business is being
strategically deployed into existing facilities to provide
additional capacity. The total cash purchase price of $18.8
million has been accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, and results of operations subsequent to July 31, 2000,
are included in these financial statements.

On January 6, 2000, the Company purchased the remaining 13
percent minority interest in Morgan Adhesives Company
(MACtac). The Company issued 1,730,952 shares of its common
stock and paid $3.4 million in cash. Upon the acquisition of these
minority shares, MACtac became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Bemis Company, Inc.

On January 13, 1999, the Company purchased the remaining
minority interest in voting preference shares of Perfecseal
Limited in accordance with an agreement dated April 29, 1996,
relating to the acquisition of Perfecseal Healthcare Packaging
Division (Perfecseal) of Paper Manufacturers Company, Inc.  A
cash payment of $1.4 million was made to acquire the remaining
outstanding minority interest.
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On June 4, 1998, the Company formed Bemis Europe Holdings,
S.A. to acquire Techy, a European manufacturer of flexible
packaging.  The acquisition, which was effective on June 30,
1998, and was accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, added manufacturing and sales locations in Belgium,
France, and the United Kingdom.  Approximately $11.3 million
was paid to acquire 100% control. In October 2000, in
accordance with an earn-out provision of the original purchase
contract, the Company paid an additional $1.5 million.

Effective February 1, 1998, the Company purchased a one-third
interest in a newly formed Brazilian joint venture, ITAP/Bemis
Ltda. for $38.9 million. This joint venture between the
Company and Dixie Toga, S.A., a major supplier of flexible
packaging in South America, creates an organization that is
strong in market knowledge and presence to serve the needs of
the South American marketplace.  Since Bemis did not purchase
a controlling interest in the company, this investment and
future earnings are recorded under the equity method 
of accounting. 

Supplemental pro forma results of operations giving effect to the
acquisitions are not presented because they are not material.

Note 3 - INVENTORIES
The Company’s inventories are valued at the lower of cost,
determined by the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, or market.
Inventories are summarized at December 31, as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Raw materials and supplies $ 84,867 $ 93,539
Work in process and finished goods 189,456 181,058

Total inventories $274,323 $ 274,597

Note 4 - PENSION PLANS
Defined contribution plans cover employees at seven different
manufacturing or administrative locations and provide for
contributions ranging from 2 percent to 6 percent of covered
employees’ salaries or wages and totaled $845,000 in 2000,
$695,000 in 1999, and $733,000 in 1998.  Multiemployer plans
cover employees at two different manufacturing locations and
provide for contributions to a union administered defined
benefit pension plan.  Amounts charged to pension cost and
contributed to the plans in 2000, 1999, and 1998 totaled
$771,000, $1,136,000, and $1,267,000, respectively.

The Company has defined benefit pension plans covering the
majority of U.S. employees.  The benefits under the plans are
based on years of service and salary levels. Certain plans
covering hourly employees provide benefits of stated amounts
for each year of service.  In addition, the Company also sponsors

an unfunded supplemental retirement plan to provide senior
management with benefits in excess of limits under the federal
tax law and increased benefits to reflect a service adjustment
factor. Net periodic pension cost for defined benefit plans
included the following components for the year ended
December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998.

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Service cost - benefits 

earned during the year $ 9,271 $ 8,992 $ 7,575
Interest cost on projected 

benefit obligation 20,915 19,157 17,891
Expected return on 

plan assets (38,223) (31,434) (26,045)
Amortization of 

unrecognized transition 
obligation 992 1,019 1,060

Amortization of 
prior service cost 1,248 810 662

Recognized net (gain) 
or loss (5,750) (2,328) (429)

Net periodic pension 
(income) cost $(11,547) $ (3,784) $ 714

Changes in benefit obligation and plan assets, and a
reconciliation of the funded status at December 31, 2000 and
1999, are as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the year $313,932 $ 287,652

Service cost 9,271 8,992 
Interest cost 20,915 19,157
Plan participants’ contributions 65
Plan amendments 5,621 3,580
Actuarial (gain) or loss 781 6,261
Acquisition 11,349 4,588
Benefits paid (18,995) (16,387)
Foreign currency exchange 
rate changes 170 89 

Benefit obligation at the 
end of the year $343,109 $ 313,932
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(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at 
the beginning of the year $439,263 $ 369,604

Actual return on plan assets (6,904) 80,868
Acquisition 12,130 4,667
Employer contributions 1,937 358
Plan participants’ contributions 65
Benefits paid (18,995) (16,387)
Foreign currency exchange 

rate changes 176 153

Fair value of plan assets at 
the end of the year $427,672 $ 439,263

Reconciliation of Funded Status
Funded status $ 84,563 $ 125,331
Unrecognized net (gain) or loss (96,852) (148,021)
Unrecognized transition (asset) 

or obligation 2,172 2,854
Unrecognized prior service cost 14,414 9,787

Prepaid (accrued) pension liability $ 4,297 $ (10,049)

The Company has recorded the following amounts pursuant to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87,
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions,” to reflect the minimum
pension obligation at December 31:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Intangible asset $ 79
Prepaid tax $ 1,072 430 
Pension liability (2,803) (2,207) 

Reduction in stockholders’ equity $ (1,731) $ (1,698)

Presented below are the projected benefit obligation,
accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of plan assets for
the pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess
of plan assets at December 31:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Projected benefit obligation $ 17,997 $ 17,399
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 14,213 $ 12,257
Fair value of assets $ 1,835 $ 1,252

The weighted-average discount rate and rate of increase in future
compensation levels used in determining the actuarial present
value of the projected benefit obligation together with the
expected long-term rate of return on assets is presented below.

2000 1999 
Weighted-average discount rate 7.00% 6.75%
Rate of increase in future 

compensation levels 5.50% 5.25%
Expected long-term rate 

of return on assets 10.00% 10.00%

Total pension (income) expense in 2000, 1999, and 1998 was
$(9,234,000), $(1,214,000), and $3,525,000,  respectively.

Note 5 - POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
The Company sponsors several defined benefit postretirement
plans that cover a majority  of salaried and a portion of nonunion
hourly employees.  These plans provide health care benefits and,
in some instances, provide life insurance benefits.  Except for one
closed-group plan, which is noncontributory, postretirement
health care plans are contributory, with retiree contributions
adjusted annually; life insurance plans are noncontributory.

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs included the following
components for the year ended December 31, 2000, 1999, and 1998.

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Service cost - benefits 

earned during the year $ 292 $ 217 $ 195
Interest cost on 

accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation 924 794 765

Amortization of 
prior service cost 48 11 12

Recognized 
net (gain) or loss (60) (266) (342)

Net periodic 
postretirement benefit cost $1,204 $ 756 $ 630

Changes in benefit obligation and plan assets, and a
reconciliation of the funded status at December 31, 2000 and
1999, are as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Change in Benefit Obligation
Benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the year $ 14,222 $ 12,234

Service cost 292 217
Interest cost 924 794
Plan amendments 394
Actuarial (gain) or loss 285 1,608
Benefits paid (685) (1,025)

Benefit obligation at 
the end of the year $ 15,038 $ 14,222
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(in thousands) 2000 1999 
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of plan assets at 
the beginning of the year $ 0 $ 0

Employer contributions 685 1,025
Benefits paid (685) (1,025)

Fair value of plan assets at 
the end of the year $ 0 $ 0

Reconciliation of Funded Status
Funded status $(15,038) $ (14,222)
Unrecognized net actuarial 

(gain) or loss (1,898) (2,243)
Unrecognized prior service cost 439 486

Accrued postretirement 
benefit liability $(16,497) $ (15,979)

The health care cost trend rate assumption has a significant
effect on the amounts reported.  A one-percentage point change
in assumed health care trends would have the following effects:

(in thousands) 1 Percentage 1 Percentage
Point Increase Point Decrease

Effect on total of service 
and interest cost components $ 136 $ (116)

Effect on postretirement 
benefit obligation 1,283 (1,124)

For measurement purposes, a 7.0 percent annual rate of increase
in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was
assumed for 2000; the rate was assumed to decrease gradually to
5.5 percent by the year 2003 and remain at that level thereafter.
The weighted-average discount rate used in determining the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 7.0 percent
in 2000 and 6.75 percent in 1999.

Note 6 - STOCK OPTION AND INCENTIVE PLANS
Since 1987, the Company’s stock option and stock award plans
have provided for the issuance of up to 4,400,000 shares of
common stock to key employees.  As of December 31, 2000,
1999, and 1998, respectively, 199,535,  711,194, and 922,179
shares were available for future grants under these plans.

Options are granted at prices equal to fair market value on the
date of the grant and are exercisable over varying periods up to
ten years from the date of grant.  Shares subject to options
granted but not exercised become available for future grants.  

At December 31, 2000, nineteen participants held options with
expiration dates ranging from 2001 to 2010 with a weighted-
average remaining contractual life of 6.5 years and at option
prices ranging from $18.72 to $45.03 per share with a weighted-
average price of $33.59 per share.  

Details of the stock option plans at December 31, 2000, 1999,
and 1998, are:

Per Share Weighted-
Number of Option Price Average Price

Shares Range Per Share
Outstanding at 
December 31, 1997 1,179,883 $12.63 - $45.03 $24.18

Exercised in 1998 (39,756) 18.72 - 24.63 20.17
Outstanding at 
December 31, 1998 1,140,127 $12.63 - $45.03 $24.32
Exercisable at 
December 31, 1998 955,088 $12.63 - $45.03 $21.44

Granted in 1999 168,346 35.56 - 37.63 37.26
Exercised in 1999 (100,000) 12.63 12.63

Outstanding at 
December 31, 1999 1,208,473 $14.94 - $45.03 $27.09
Exercisable at 
December 31, 1999 990,127 $14.94 - $45.03 $24.45

Granted in 2000 412,349 31.72 - 37.63 35.46
Exercised in 2000 (380,000) 14.94 14.94

Outstanding at 
December 31, 2000 1,240,822 $18.72 - $45.03 $33.59
Exercisable at 
December 31, 2000 1,005,968 $18.72 - $45.03 $32.85

In 1994, the Company adopted a Stock Incentive Plan for
certain key executive employees.  Since its adoption, all of the
grants of either stock options or performance units (commonly
referred to as restricted stock) have been made under this plan.
Distribution of the performance units is normally made in the
form of shares of the Company’s common stock on a one for one
basis.  Distribution of the shares will normally be made not less
than three years nor more than six years from the date of the
performance unit grant.  All performance units granted under
the plan are subject to restrictions as to continuous employment,
except in the case of death, permanent disability, or retirement.
In addition, cash payments are made during the grant period on
outstanding performance units equal to the dividend on Bemis
common stock.  The cost of the awards is charged to income
over the period of the grant:  $6,339,000 was expensed in 2000,
$7,548,000 in 1999, and $7,012,000 in 1998.
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Details of the stock award plan at December 31, 2000, 1999, and
1998, are:

Number
of Shares

Outstanding at December 31, 1997 1,575,234
Granted 185,438
Paid (626,399)
Canceled (82,116)

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 1,052,157
Granted 103,558
Canceled (60,919)

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 1,094,796
Granted 244,492
Paid (14,000)
Canceled (145,182)

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 1,180,106 

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”  Accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized for the stock option
plan.  Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans been determined based on the fair value at
the grant date for stock options and awards in 2000, 1999, and
1998 consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the
Company’s net earnings and earnings per share would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
2000 1999 1998

Net earnings - 
as reported $130,602 $ 114,775 $101,130

Net earnings - 
pro forma $126,659 $ 112,426 $ 98,883

Diluted earnings 
per share - as reported $2.44 $ 2.18 $ 1.90

Diluted earnings 
per share - pro forma $2.37 $ 2.14 $ 1.86

Dividend yield 2.7% 2.4% 2.0%
Expected volatility 28.3% 27.6% 27.1%

Risk-free interest rate 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Expected lives (in years) 8.0 8.1 5.9

The fair value of each grant made in 2000, 1999, and 1998 is estimated
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
using the above indicated weighted-average assumptions for dividend
yield, expected volatility, risk-free interest rate, and expected lives.  The
weighted-average fair value of stock options and awards granted during
2000, 1999, and 1998, used in computing pro forma compensation
expense, was $11.82, $13.10, and $14.80 per share, respectively.

Note 7 - LEASES
All noncancelable leases have been categorized as capital or
operating leases. The Company has leases for manufacturing
plants, warehouses, machinery and equipment, and administrative
offices with terms (including renewal options) ranging from one
to 25 years.  Under most leasing arrangements, the Company pays
the property taxes, insurance, maintenance, and expenses related
to the leased property. Total rental expense under operating leases
was $9,296,000 in 2000, $11,281,000 in 1999, and $13,095,000 in
1998.  There were no active capital leases in 2000.  Interest
expense on the outstanding obligations under capital leases was
$0 in 2000, $13,000 in 1999, and $31,000 in 1998.

Minimum future obligations on leases in effect at December 31,
2000, are:
(in thousands) Operating Leases

2001 $ 6,692
2002 4,655
2003 3,215
2004 2,155
2005 1,385
Thereafter 6,709

Total minimum obligations $ 24,811

Note 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt maturing in years 2001 through 2005 is
$227,459,000, $1,324,000, $657,000, $657,000, and $100,657,000,
respectively.

Under the terms of a revolving credit agreement with six banks, the
Company may borrow up to $334 million through August 1, 2005.
The Company currently pays a facility fee of .12 percent  annually
on the entire amount of the commitment. There were no
borrowings outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2000.  Debt consisted of the following at December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 
Commercial paper 

payable through 2001 at an 
interest rate of 6.6% (1) $545,037 $255,072 

Note payable in 2005 at 
an interest rate of 6.7% 100,000 100,000

Industrial revenue bonds 
payable through 2015 at 
interest rates of 4.6% to 5.8% 15,500 15,500 

Debt of subsidiary companies 
payable through 2006 at interest 
rates of 2.75% to 9.25% 4,874 2,740 

Obligations under capital leases 4
Total debt 665,411 373,316 
Less current portion 227,459 1,049

Total long-term debt $437,952 $372,267
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(1) The commercial paper has been classified as long-term debt,
to the extent of available long-term backup credit agreements, in
accordance with the Company’s intention and ability to
refinance such obligations on a long-term basis.  The interest
rate of commercial paper outstanding at December 31, 2000,
was 6.6 percent.  The maximum outstanding during 2000 was
$558,037,000, and the average outstanding during 2000 was
$347,952,000.  The weighted-average interest rate during 2000
was 6.5 percent.

Note 9 - INCOME TAXES
(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
U.S. income before 

income taxes $ 183,037 $ 169,210 $ 149,917
Non-U.S. income 

before income taxes 31,204 26,068 17,288
Consolidating eliminations (2,739) (9,403) (2,175)

Income before income taxes $ 211,502 $ 185,875 $ 165,030

Income tax expense consists of the following components:
Current tax expense:

U.S. federal $ 44,294 $ 50,032 $ 44,009
Foreign 11,354 7,095 3,413
State and local 8,716 8,442 7,535
Total current 
tax expense 64,364 65,569 54,957

Deferred (prepaid) 
tax expense:

U.S. federal 13,876 3,375 6,562
Foreign 150 1,556 1,721
State 2,510 600 660
Total deferred 
(prepaid) tax expense 16,536 5,531 8,943

Total income tax expense $ 80,900 $ 71,100 $ 63,900

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to
significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented below.

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Deferred tax assets:

Accounts receivable, 
principally due to
allowances for returns 
and doubtful accounts $ 4,742 $ 4,589 $ 4,574 
Inventories, principally
due to additional costs 
inventoried for tax 
purposes pursuant to the 
Tax Reform Act of 1986 3,291 3,593 4,646
Employee compensation 
and benefits accrued 
for financial reporting 
purposes 13,892 14,404 15,115
Other 4,099 1,149 1,687

Total deferred tax assets 
(included in prepaid 
expenses and 
deferred charges) $ 26,024 $ 23,735 $ 26,022 

Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant and equipment, 
principally due to 
differences in depreciation, 
capitalized interest, and 
capitalized overhead $ 112,282 $ 102,262 $ 90,087
Noncurrent employee 
compensation and benefits 
accrued for financial 
reporting purposes (11,413) (17,424) (16,127)
Other 2,752 4,797 10,719

Total deferred tax liabilities $ 103,621 $ 89,635 $ 84,679

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate due to the following items:
(dollars in thousands) 2000 1999 1998

% of Income % of Income % of Income
Amount Before Tax Amount Before Tax Amount Before Tax

Computed “expected” tax expense 
on income before taxes at statutory rate $74,026 35.0% $65,056 35.0% $57,761 35.0% 

Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
State and local income taxes 
net of federal income tax benefit 7,297 3.5 5,877 3.2 5,327 3.2 
Foreign tax rate differential 144 0.1 (776) (0.4) (1,113) (0.7)
Minority interest 174 0.1 1,478 0.8 1,574 1.0 
Other (741) (0.4) (535) (0.3) 351 0.2 

Actual income tax expense $80,900 38.3% $71,100 38.3% $63,900 38.7%
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The Company’s federal income tax returns for the years prior to
1998 have been audited and completely settled.  Provision has
not been made for U.S. or additional foreign taxes on
$149,954,000 of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
because those earnings are considered to be permanently
reinvested in the operations of those subsidiaries.  It is not
practicable to estimate the amount of tax that might be payable
on the eventual remittance of such earnings.

Note 10- SEGMENTS OF BUSINESS
The Company’s business activities are organized around its two
principal business segments, Flexible Packaging and Pressure
Sensitive Materials.  Both internal and external reporting
conform to this organizational structure with no significant
differences in accounting policies applied.  Minor intersegment
sales are generally priced to reflect nominal markups.  The
Company evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates
resources to them based on operating profit which is defined as
profit before general corporate expense, interest expense, income
taxes, and minority interest. While there are similarities in
selected technology and manufacturing processes utilized,
notable differences exist in products, application and distribution
of products, and customer base.  

Products produced within the Flexible Packaging business
segment include high barrier, polyethylene, and paper products
for food, medical, personal care, agribusiness, chemicals, pet
food, and sanitary products. Products produced within the
Pressure Sensitive Materials business segment include film, paper,
and metalized plastic film printing stocks used for primary
package labeling, promotional decoration, bar code inventory
control labels, and laser printing for administrative office and
promotional applications.  This segment also includes micro-thin
film adhesives used in delicate electronic parts assembly and
graphic films for decorative signage.  

A summary of the Company’s business activities reported by its
two business segments follows:

BUSINESS SEGMENTS 
(in millions) 2000 1999 1998
Net Sales to Unaffiliated Customers:

Flexible Packaging $1,660.2 $1,469.9 $1,400.0
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials 506.0 493.2 489.8

Intersegment Sales:
Flexible Packaging (1.6) (0.3) (0.2)
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials (0.2) (0.2)

Total $2,164.6 $1,962.6 $1,889.4

(in millions) 2000 1999 1998
Operating Profit and Pretax Profit:

Flexible Packaging $ 221.3 $ 187.2 $ 156.3 
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials 40.1 44.3 51.0 

Total operating profit (1) 261.4 231.5 207.3 
General corporate expenses (17.8) (20.2) (15.9)
Interest expense (31.6) (21.2) (21.9)
Minority interest 
in net income (0.5) (4.2) (4.5)
Income before 
income taxes $ 211.5 $ 185.9 $ 165.0 

Identifiable Assets:
Flexible Packaging $1,481.3 $ 1,180.8 $1,144.3 
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials 352.4 310.5 289.8

Total identifiable 
assets (2) 1,833.7 1,491.3 1,434.1

Corporate assets (3) 54.9 40.8 47.9
Total $1,888.6 $ 1,532.1 $1,482.0

Depreciation and Amortization:
Flexible Packaging $ 86.6 $ 76.1 $ 69.5
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials 19.9 20.1 18.6
Corporate 1.6 1.5 .8

Total $ 108.1 $ 97.7 $ 88.9

Expenditures for Property and Equipment:
Flexible Packaging $ 86.5 $ 101.4 $ 115.7
Pressure Sensitive 
Materials 13.1 34.9 22.1
Corporate .8 1.1 2.0

Total $ 100.4 $ 137.4 $ 139.8

OPERATIONS BY GEOGRAPHIC AREAS 
(in millions) 2000 1999 1998
Net Sales to Unaffiliated Customers: (4)

United States $1,821.5 $ 1,653.9 $1,607.5
Canada 77.6 72.6 65.4
Europe 229.3 211.3 198.4
Other 36.2 24.8 18.1

Total $2,164.6 $ 1,962.6 $1,889.4 

Identifiable Assets:
United States $ 1,542.2 $ 1,237.8 $ 1,172.0
Canada 34.8 31.0 28.5
Europe 195.9 196.3 195.2
Other 60.8 26.2 38.4

Total $1,833.7 $ 1,491.3 $1,434.1
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(1) Operating profit is defined as profit before general corporate
expense, interest expense, income taxes, and minority interest.
(2) Identifiable assets by business segment include only those assets
that are specifically identified with each segment’s operations.
(3) Corporate assets are principally cash and short-term
investments, prepaid expenses, and corporate property.
(4) Net sales are attributed to countries based on location of the
Company’s manufacturing or selling operation.

Note 11 - CONTINGENCIES
The Company is a defendant in lawsuits incidental to its
business.  The management of the Company believes, however,
that the disposition of these lawsuits will not have any material
impact on the financial position or operating results of the
Company.

During 2000, the Company settled a lawsuit brought by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency in Federal
District Court for the District of Connecticut in relation to the
disposal of liquid industrial wastes at the Yaworski Lagoon site in
Canterbury, Connecticut. The settlement involved the Company’s
payment of $3,160,000 in 2000 which was fully provided for in
prior years.

Note 12 - FOREIGN OPERATIONS
The foreign countries in which the Company conducts
operations generally impose no significant restrictions on
transfers of funds.  Amounts attributable to foreign operations
included in the consolidated statements are as follows:

(in thousands) 2000 1999 1998
Net sales of consolidated 

foreign subsidiaries $ 343,079 $ 308,681 $ 281,888
Net income of consolidated 

foreign subsidiaries 20,090 16,336 11,456
Foreign earnings in excess 

of dividends received 17,351 6,931 9,281
Equity in net assets 193,318 135,034 136,330
Equity in total assets 278,712 214,792 211,553

Note 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company enters into forward foreign currency exchange
contracts to hedge certain foreign currency denominated
receivables and payables.  Exchange gains and losses arising
from these transactions are deferred and recognized when the
transaction for which the hedge was obtained is finalized.  At
December 31, 2000 and 1999, the Company had outstanding
forward foreign currency exchange contracts aggregating
$7,270,000 and $7,921,000, respectively.  Forward foreign
currency exchange contracts generally have maturities of less
than nine months and relate primarily to major Western
European currencies.  Counterparties to the forward foreign

currency exchange contracts are major financial institutions.
Credit loss from counterparty nonperformance is not
anticipated.  Based on quoted year-end market prices of its
forward foreign currency exchange contracts the Company
would have experienced a $10,000 loss at December 31, 2000,
and a $126,000 loss at December 31, 1999, had outstanding
contracts been settled at those respective dates.

At December 31, 2000 and 1999, the carrying value
approximates the fair value of financial instruments such as cash,
trade receivables and payables, and short-term debt because of
the short-term maturities of these instruments.  The fair value of
the Company’s long-term debt, including current maturities but
excluding capitalized leases, is estimated to be $665,448,000
and $379,532,000 at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively,
using discounted cash flow analyses, based on the incremental
borrowing rates currently available to the Company for similar
debt with similar terms and maturity.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade accounts
receivable are limited due to the large number of entities
comprising the Company’s customer base and their dispersion
across many different industries and countries. As of December
31, 2000 and 1999, the Company had no significant
concentrations of credit risk.  On January 1, 2001, Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard, No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments (SFAS 133), was adopted by the
Company.  SFAS 133 requires that the fair value of derivative
instruments, such as forward foreign currency exchange
contracts, be recorded on the balance sheet with subsequent
changes reflected in income or deferred as an element of equity.  
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Note 15 - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION - UNAUDITED
(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Net Sales Gross Profit Net Income Diluted Earnings Per Share
% % % %

Quarter 2000 1999 Change 2000 1999 Change 2000 1999 Change 2000 1999 Change

First $ 512.6 $ 461.2 11% $107.6 $ 96.5 12% $ 29.6 $ 18.7 58% $ .55 $ .36 53%

Second 537.3 492.2 9 114.1 108.3 5 35.4 31.6 12 .66 .60 10

Third 542.8 502.9 8 108.9 106.0 3 32.2 31.2 3 .60 .59 2

Fourth 571.9 506.3 13 116.7 112.9 3 33.4 33.3 .63 .63

Total $2,164.6 $1,962.6 10% $447.3 $423.7 6% $130.6 $114.8 14% $2.44 $2.18 12%

Note 14 - EARNINGS PER SHARE COMPUTATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2000 1999 1998

Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic EPS
Income available to 
common stockholders $130,602 53,178 $2.46 $114,775 52,307 $2.19 $101,130 53,030 $1.91

Dilutive effects of stock 
option and stock award plans 375 350 294

Diluted EPS
Income available to 
common stockholders $130,602 53,553 $2.44 $114,775 52,657 $2.18 $101,130 53,324 $1.90
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Flexible Packaging

High Barrier Products
Curwood

Oshkosh,Wisconsin
New London, Wisconsin
Lebanon, Pennsylvania
Murphysboro, Illinois
Fremont, Ohio
Appleton, Wisconsin
Centerville, Iowa
Pauls Valley, Oklahoma
Georgetown, Ontario, 

Canada
Swansea, Wales
São Paulo, Brazil

Milprint
Oshkosh, Wisconsin
Denmark, Wisconsin
Lancaster, Wisconsin
New London, Wisconsin

Perfecseal
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Oshkosh, Wisconsin
Mankato, Minnesota
Londonderry, Northern 

Ireland
Carolina, Puerto Rico
Selangor, Malaysia 

MacKay
Florence, Kentucky
Omaha, Nebraska
New London, Wisconsin
Murfreesboro, Tennessee

ITAP/Bemis Ltda. (affiliate)
São Paulo, Brazil
Londrina, Brazil

Techy Bemis, S.A.
Charleroi, Belgium

Polyethylene Products
Polyethylene Packaging 

Terre Haute, Indiana
Hazleton, Pennsylvania
Flemington, New Jersey
Union City, California

Banner Packaging
Oshkosh, Wisconsin

Bemis Custom Products
Oshkosh, Wisconsin
Longview, Texas
ShelbyvilIe, Tennessee
Brigg, North Lincolnshire,

England

Paper Products
Paper Packaging

Crossett, Arkansas
Peoria, Illinois
Omaha, Nebraska
Vancouver, Washington
San Luis Potosi, Mexico

Bemistape
Minneapolis, Minnesota

Pressure Sensitive
Materials

MACtac Americas
Stow, Ohio
Columbus, Indiana
Nellis, Nevada
Scranton, Pennsylvania
Hopkins, Minnesota
Dallas, Texas
Green, Ohio
Kansas City, Missouri
Lawrenceville, Georgia
Vancouver, Washington
Sandusky, Ohio
Brampton, Ontario, 

Canada
San Luis Potosi, Mexico 

MACtac Europe
Soignies, Belgium
Northampton, England
Paris, France
Köln, Germany
Milan, Italy
Barcelona, Spain
Malmo, Sweden
Frauenfeld, Switzerland
Warsaw, Poland

MACtac Asia Pacific
Singapore

Company Operations

Selangor, Malaysia

Singapore
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Board of Directors (year elected)

John H. Roe (1978)
Chairman,
Bemis Company, Inc. 1* 

Nancy P. McDonald (1982)
Director, Hillcrest Corp. 2, 4*, 5

Edward N. Perry (1992)
Partner, Perkins, Smith & Cohen 2, 4, 5

Jeffrey H. Curler (1992)
President and Chief 
Executive Officer,
Bemis Company, Inc. 1

Loring W. Knoblauch (1993)
President and Chief 
Executive Officer,
Talon Automated Equipment Co. 2*, 5

Winslow H. Buxton (1993)
Chairman
Pentair, Inc. 1, 3* 5

C. Angus Wurtele (1994)
Retired Chairman, Valspar 
Corporation 1, 3, 5*

Roger D. O’Shaughnessy (1997)
President and Chief 
Executive Officer,
Cardinal IG Company 1, 3, 5

John G. Bollinger (1999)
John Bascom Professor of Industrial
Engineering, 
Dean Emeritus
University of Wisconsin-Madison 4, 5

William J. Bolton (2000)
Consultant, Food Industry, formerly
Executive Vice President, SuperValu, Inc.
1, 2, 5

1. Executive and Finance Committee
2. Audit Committee
3. Compensation Committee
4. Community Relations Committee
5. Nominating Committee

*Chairperson

Corporate Officers
Jeffrey H. Curler
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director

John H. Roe
Chairman and Director

Scott W. Johnson
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Benjamin R. Field, III
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer

Thomas L. Sall
Vice President, Operations

Gene C. Wulf
Vice President and Controller

Eugene H. Seashore, Jr.
Vice President, Human Resources

Stanley A. Jaffy
Vice President, Tax and Assistant
Controller

Operations Management

Flexible Packaging

Thomas L. Sall, President

High Barrier Products

Curwood
Henry J. Theisen, President

Milprint
Robert F. Hawthorne, President

Perfecseal
Alan D. McClure, President

MacKay
James A. Elliott, President

Flexible Packaging–Europe
Marc Dussart, President

Techy Bemis, S.A.
Maurice Dangotte, President and
General Manager

Polyethylene Products

Polyethylene Packaging
Gary V. Stone, President  

Banner Packaging
James A. Russler, President

Bemis Custom Products
Christopher C. Martin, President 

Paper Products

Paper Packaging
Neal J. Ganly, President

Bemistape
William M. Zenner, Vice President and
General Manager

Pressure Sensitive Materials

William F. Austen, President and CEO

MACtac Americas

Roll Label Products
R. Curtis Clarke, Vice President and
General Manager

Graphics and Distribution Products
Barry J. Madel, Vice President and
General Manager

Technical and Industrial Products
Kurt M. Schramer, Vice President and
General Manager

MACtac Mexico
Jose Martin Alba, President

Electronic Printing Products
Jodi A. Westphal, General Manager

MACtac Europe

Marc Dussart, President

Directors, Officers and Operations Management



Financial Information
Additional financial information is
available on the Bemis web site
(www.bemis.com) or by contacting:

Melanie E.R. Miller
Director of Investor Relations
Bemis Company, Inc.
222 South Ninth Street
Suite 2300
Minneapolis, MN  55402-4099
612-376-3000
E-mail:  mermiller@bemis.com

Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Information on the Company’s
Dividend Reinvestment Plan is 
available by contacting:

Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota
Dividend Reinvestment Department
161 North Concord Exchange
P.O. Box 738
South St. Paul, MN  55075-0738
651-450-4064 or
1-800-468-9716

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
P.O. Box 738
South St. Paul, MN  55075-0738
651-450-4064 or
1-800-468-9716

Bemis Common Stock
Bemis stock is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange under the 
symbol BMS, and is a component 
of the S&P 500 index.

Annual Meeting
May 3, 2001, at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Main Lounge of the Minneapolis
Club, 729 2nd Avenue South,
Minneapolis, Minnesota.

© Bemis Company, Inc. 2001
Brownberry® is a registered trademark of Arnold Products, Inc., used with permission.
Tyvek® is a registered trademark of E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company.
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